
1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



Denton County Transportation Authority

Investment Portfolio Summary

September 30, 2014

For the Quarter Ended

Prepared by

FirstSouthwest Asset Management

16

amosqueda
Typewritten Text

amosqueda
Typewritten Text
WS 1a(v)



Table of Contents / Market Recap

Report Name

Executive Summary

Benchmark Comparison

Detail of Security Holdings

Change in Value

Earned Income

Investment Transactions

Amortization and Accretion

Projected Fixed Income Cash Flows

Certification Page

MARKET RECAP: 

Economic data released during the month of September followed the all too familiar path of the last 

several months, with one day’s seemingly positive data offset by the next day’s weaker data. The 

month opened with a bang as the August ISM manufacturing index surged to a lofty 59.0, the 

second highest since 2004. That was quickly followed by a strong non-manufacturing ISM, which 

reached a nine-year high at 59.6. Topping off the good news early in the month were auto sales, 

which rose 6.4% in August to an annualized 17.45 million unit pace, the highest in 8½ years. The 

August employment report went in the other direction as just 142k new jobs were created, well 

below the 230k forecasts were calling for. The unemployment rate ticked down from 6.2% to 6.1%, 

but the decline was due to a reduction in the labor force as the participation rate slipped back to 

62.8%, matching a 35 year low. Average hourly earnings rose 0.2% in August and are up a paltry 

2.1% year-over-year. Despite the lack of wage gains, consumers broke out the credit cards and 

went shopping in August as retail sales rose a respectable 0.6%, the biggest gain in four months, 

while July’s previously unchanged reading was revised up to a gain of 0.3%. The corollary to this 

story is that consumer debt has reached an all-time high at $3.2 trillion. Meanwhile, inflation 

remains subdued with the consumer price index (CPI) increasing 1.7% year-over-year through 

August while the Fed’s preferred PCE measure is running at just 1.5%. Housing data continued the 

mixed pattern of the last several months. Existing homes sales sank 1.8% in August to a 5.05 

million unit annual rate and are down 5.3% on a year-over-year basis. By contrast, new home sales 

jumped 18% to a 504k annual rate, the highest level since May 2008, though still a low level 

historically.

The major stock indices reached fresh record highs mid-month, but retreated into quarter-end and 

fell sharply on the first day of October. Bond yields climbed modestly during the month with the 

two-year Treasury yield rising from 0.49% to 0.57% and the 10-year from 2.34% to 2.49%. The 

Federal Reserve stayed on course, trimming QE3 by another $10 billion to $15 billion per month. 

The program should be terminated following the late-October FOMC meeting. A few minor tweaks 

to their official rate forecast did nothing to alter market expectations for the first rate hike to occur 

sometime around the middle of 2015. A few of the more dovish Fed members voiced caution, citing 

a history of tightening too quickly and the recent strength in the dollar as reasons to be patient. The 

dollar has appreciated sharply in recent months on geopolitical concerns and weakening 

economies in Europe, Japan, and China. This hurts U.S. exporters as our goods become more 

expensive abroad. At the same time, imported goods become cheaper for U.S. consumers, making 

it harder for U.S. producers to compete. The result can be a deflationary headwind to the economy, 

and just one more thing to worry about.

17



Denton County Transportation Authority
Investment Officers' Certification

This report is prepared for the Denton County Transportation Authority (the “Entity”) in accordance with Chapter 2256 of the Texas Public Funds Investment 

Act ("PFIA"). Section 2256.023(a) of the PFIA states that: “Not less than quarterly, the investment officer shall prepare and submit to the governing body of the 

entity a written report of the investment transactions for all funds covered by this chapter for the preceding reporting period.” This report is signed by the Entity’s 

investment officers and includes the disclosures required in the PFIA. To the extent possible, market prices have been obtained from independent pricing 

sources.

The investment portfolio complied with the PFIA and the Entity’s approved Investment Policy and Strategy throughout the period. All investment transactions 

made in the portfolio during this period were made on behalf of the Entity and were made in full compliance with the PFIA and the approved Investment Policy.

September 30, 2014

For the Quarter Ended

Officer Names and Titles:

18



Executive Summary
As of 09/30/14  

Denton County Transportation Authority

 19,604,943.12

 19,604,943.12

 19,604,943.12

 0.00 Unrealized Gain / Loss

Par Value

Book Value

Beginning Values as of 06/30/14     

Market Value

Market Value %  100.00%

Weighted Avg. YTW

Weighted Avg. YTM  0.110%

 0.110%

Account Summary

Ending Values as of 09/30/14    

 19,003,065.64 

 19,003,065.64 

 19,003,065.64 

 0.00 

 100.00%

 0.103%

 0.103%

Allocation by Security Type

BANK DEP 68%

LGIP 31%

MMF 1%

Total: 100%

WF 69%

TEXSTAR 31%

Total: 100%

Allocation by Issuer

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Overnight

100%

Maturity Distribution %

Weighted Average Days to Maturity:  0

AAA 31%

Collateralized 69%

Total: 100%

Credit Quality

Page 1 of 1Print Date:  10/15/2014 Print Time:   2:44 pm 19



As of  09/30/2014

Benchmark Comparison
Denton County Transportation Authority

0.00%

0.04%

0.08%

0.12%

0.16%

0.20%

Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14

3-MO CMT 6-MO CMT 1-YR CMT TEXPOOL
Denton County
Transportation Authority

Note 2:   Benchmark data for TexPool is the monthly average yield.  

Note 1:   CMT stands for Constant Maturity Treasury. This data is published in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 and represents an average of all actively traded Treasury securities having that time remaining until maturity. This is a 

standard industry benchmark for Treasury securities. The CMT benchmarks are moving averages. The 3-month CMT is the daily average for the previous 3 months, the 6-month CMT is the daily average for the previous 6 months, and the 

1-year and 2-year CMT's are the daily averages for the previous 12-months.  

Page 1 of 1Print Time:   2:46 pmPrint Date:  10/15/2014 20



Mty DateCUSIP Sec. Description CPN Par Value Orig Cost Book Value Market Value

Detail of Security Holdings
As of  09/30/2014

Sec. Type

Purch

 Price

Mkt

 Price

Days 

to Mty

Days 

to CallNext Call

Denton County Transportation Authority

YTM
Settle

 Date YTWCall Type

2011 Bond Fund

 3,341,547.43  3,341,547.43  3,341,547.43  3,341,547.43WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  1BANK DEP  100.000  100.000  0.220  0.220

 3,341,547.43  3,341,547.43  3,341,547.43  3,341,547.43  1Total for  2011 Bond Fund  100.000  100.000  0.220  0.220

Bond Fund

 12,429.30  12,429.30  12,429.30  12,429.30TEXSTAR TexSTAR  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.032  0.032

 12,429.30  12,429.30  12,429.30  12,429.30  1Total for  Bond Fund  100.000  100.000  0.032  0.032

Operating Fund

 474,467.97  474,467.97  474,467.97  474,467.97WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  1BANK DEP  100.000  100.000  0.220  0.220

 273,794.97  273,794.97  273,794.97  273,794.97WF-SWEEP Wells Fargo Sweep  1MMF  100.000  100.000  0.020  0.020

 748,262.94  748,262.94  748,262.94  748,262.94  1Total for  Operating Fund  100.000  100.000  0.147  0.147

Reserve Fund

 8,941,300.63  8,941,300.63  8,941,300.63  8,941,300.63WF-PREM Wells Fargo Premium Rate  1BANK DEP  100.000  100.000  0.100  0.100

 8,941,300.63  8,941,300.63  8,941,300.63  8,941,300.63  1Total for  Reserve Fund  100.000  100.000  0.100  0.100

RTRFI Funding

 116,182.85  116,182.85  116,182.85  116,182.85WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  1BANK DEP  100.000  100.000  0.220  0.220

 116,182.85  116,182.85  116,182.85  116,182.85  1Total for  RTRFI Funding  100.000  100.000  0.220  0.220

Sales Tax Fund

 5,843,342.49  5,843,342.49  5,843,342.49  5,843,342.49TEXSTAR TexSTAR  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.032  0.032

 5,843,342.49  5,843,342.49  5,843,342.49  5,843,342.49  1Total for  Sales Tax Fund  100.000  100.000  0.032  0.032

Print Date:  10/15/2014 Print Time:   2:46 pm Page 1 of 221



Mty DateCUSIP Sec. Description CPN Par Value Orig Cost Book Value Market Value

Detail of Security Holdings
As of  09/30/2014

Sec. Type

Purch

 Price

Mkt

 Price

Days 

to Mty

Days 

to CallNext Call

Denton County Transportation Authority

YTM
Settle

 Date YTWCall Type

 19,003,065.64  19,003,065.64  19,003,065.64  19,003,065.64  1Total for  Denton County Transportation Authority  100.000  100.000  0.103  0.103 0

Print Date:  10/15/2014 Print Time:   2:46 pm Page 2 of 222



CUSIP

Change in Value
From 06/30/2014 to 09/30/2014

Amortization /

Accretion 

Realized 

Gain/(Loss) Book Value

Cost of 

Purchases

 

Market ValueMarket Value

 

Book Value

Maturities /

Calls / Sales

Denton County Transportation Authority

Change in 

Mkt Value

06/30/14 09/30/14 09/30/1406/30/14Security Type Security Description

2011 Bond Fund

WF-MANA  0.00  3,341,547.43  3,336,470.74  3,341,547.43 3,336,470.74  5,076.69  0.00  0.00 BANK DEP  5,076.69 Wells Fargo Managed Rate

 3,341,547.43  0.00 Total for  2011 Bond Fund  3,336,470.74  3,341,547.43 3,336,470.74  5,076.69  0.00  0.00  5,076.69 

Bond Fund

TEXSTAR  0.00  12,429.30  1,004,137.46  12,429.30 1,004,137.46  550,079.35  0.00 (1,541,787.51)LGIP (991,708.16)TexSTAR

 12,429.30  0.00 Total for  Bond Fund  1,004,137.46  12,429.30 1,004,137.46  550,079.35 (1,541,787.51)  0.00 (991,708.16)

Operating Fund

WF-MANA  0.00  474,467.97  1,953,856.67  474,467.97 1,953,856.67  174.42  0.00 (1,479,563.12)BANK DEP (1,479,388.70)Wells Fargo Managed Rate

WF-SWEEP  0.00  273,794.97  253,959.60  273,794.97 253,959.60  950,278.76  0.00 (930,443.39)MMF  19,835.37 Wells Fargo Sweep

 748,262.94  0.00 Total for  Operating Fund  2,207,816.27  748,262.94 2,207,816.27  950,453.18 (2,410,006.51)  0.00 (1,459,553.33)

Reserve Fund

WF-PREM  0.00  8,941,300.63  7,459,208.34  8,941,300.63 7,459,208.34  1,482,092.29  0.00  0.00 BANK DEP  1,482,092.29 Wells Fargo Premium Rate

 8,941,300.63  0.00 Total for  Reserve Fund  7,459,208.34  8,941,300.63 7,459,208.34  1,482,092.29  0.00  0.00  1,482,092.29 

RTRFI Funding

WF-MANA  0.00  116,182.85  141,579.59  116,182.85 141,579.59  42.71  0.00 (25,439.45)BANK DEP (25,396.74)Wells Fargo Managed Rate

 116,182.85  0.00 Total for  RTRFI Funding  141,579.59  116,182.85 141,579.59  42.71 (25,439.45)  0.00 (25,396.74)

RTRFI Interest

TEXSTAR  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 LGIP  0.00 TexSTAR

 0.00  0.00 Total for  RTRFI Interest  0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Print Date:  10/15/2014 Print Time:   2:46 pm Page 1 of 223



CUSIP

Change in Value
From 06/30/2014 to 09/30/2014

Amortization /

Accretion 

Realized 

Gain/(Loss) Book Value

Cost of 

Purchases

 

Market ValueMarket Value

 

Book Value

Maturities /

Calls / Sales

Denton County Transportation Authority

Change in 

Mkt Value

06/30/14 09/30/14 09/30/1406/30/14Security Type Security Description

Sales Tax Fund

TEXSTAR  0.00  5,843,342.49  5,455,730.72  5,843,342.49 5,455,730.72  1,611,427.10  0.00 (1,223,815.33)LGIP  387,611.77 TexSTAR

 5,843,342.49  0.00 Total for  Sales Tax Fund  5,455,730.72  5,843,342.49 5,455,730.72  1,611,427.10 (1,223,815.33)  0.00  387,611.77 

 0.00  19,003,065.64 Total for  Denton County Transportation Authority  19,604,943.12  19,003,065.64 19,604,943.12  4,599,171.32 (5,201,048.80)  0.00 (601,877.48)

Print Date:  10/15/2014 Print Time:   2:46 pm Page 2 of 224



From 06/30/2014 to 09/30/2014

Denton County Transportation Authority

Beg. Accrued Net Income Security DescriptionCUSIP Disc Accr / 

Prem Amort

Earned Income

Interest Earned Interest Rec'd / 

Sold / Matured
Interest Purchased Ending AccruedSecurity Type

2011 Bond Fund

WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  0.00  1,713.11  0.00  0.00  1,713.11  1,713.11 BANK DEP  0.00 

 0.00  1,713.11  0.00  1,713.11  0.00  1,713.11 Total for  2011 Bond Fund  0.00 

Bond Fund

TEXSTAR TexSTAR  0.00  92.84  0.00  0.00  92.84  92.84 LGIP  0.00 

 0.00  92.84  0.00  92.84  0.00  92.84 Total for  Bond Fund  0.00 

Operating Fund

WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  0.00  458.30  0.00  0.00  458.30  458.30 BANK DEP  0.00 

WF-SWEEP Wells Fargo Sweep  0.00  21.72  0.00  0.00  21.72  21.72 MMF  0.00 

 0.00  480.02  0.00  480.02  0.00  480.02 Total for  Operating Fund  0.00 

Reserve Fund

WF-PREM Wells Fargo Premium Rate  0.00  2,245.29  0.00  0.00  2,245.29  2,245.29 BANK DEP  0.00 

 0.00  2,245.29  0.00  2,245.29  0.00  2,245.29 Total for  Reserve Fund  0.00 

RTRFI Funding

WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  0.00  63.28  0.00  0.00  63.28  63.28 BANK DEP  0.00 

 0.00  63.28  0.00  63.28  0.00  63.28 Total for  RTRFI Funding  0.00 

RTRFI Interest

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 Total for  RTRFI Interest  0.00 

Print Time:   2:46 pmPrint Date:  10/15/2014 Page 1 of 225



From 06/30/2014 to 09/30/2014

Denton County Transportation Authority

Beg. Accrued Net Income Security DescriptionCUSIP Disc Accr / 

Prem Amort

Earned Income

Interest Earned Interest Rec'd / 

Sold / Matured
Interest Purchased Ending AccruedSecurity Type

Sales Tax Fund

TEXSTAR TexSTAR  0.00  472.38  0.00  0.00  472.38  472.38 LGIP  0.00 

 0.00  472.38  0.00  472.38  0.00  472.38 Total for  Sales Tax Fund  0.00 

 0.00  5,066.92  0.00  0.00  5,066.92  5,066.92 Total for  Denton County Transportation Authority  0.00 

Print Time:   2:46 pmPrint Date:  10/15/2014 Page 2 of 226



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



All Stations

49,100 

56,648 

0 

10,000 

20,000 

30,000 

40,000 

50,000 

60,000 

Total Boardings: All Stations 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Total Boardings: All Stations 
In September 2014,  total boardings 
increased by 15% (or 7,548  
boardings) compared to 2013.  Reasons 
for the continued rise in boardings  
include increasing UNT enrollment,  
construction on I-35, and State Fare 
attendance. 
  

2,034 
2,205 

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

Average Weekday Boardings: All Stations 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Boardings: All Stations 
Average weekday boardings increased  
by 8% (or 171 boardings per  
weekday) from the previous year.  
 

155 

202 

50

70

90

110

130

150

170

190

210

230

250

Avg Wkdy Mid-Day Boardings: Northbound 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Mid-Day  
Boardings: Northbound 
On an average weekday during the  
mid-day, boardings increased by 30%  
(or 47 boardings per day) on northbound  
trains from September 2013 to  
September 2014. From August 2013 to  
January 2014, one northbound train  
was added.  
 

48



All Stations

214 

266 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Avg Wkdy Mid-Day Boardings: Southbound 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Mid-Day  
Boardings: Southbound 
Average daily boardings during mid-day  
traveling southbound grew by 24% 
(or 52 boardings per weekday).  
Between August 2013 and January  
2014, two southbound trips were added  
during the mid-day. 
 

630 

839 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Average Saturday Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Saturday Boardings: All Stations 
In September, average Saturday boardings 
jumped by 33% (or 209 boardings  
per Saturday) when compared to the  
previous year. Greater attendance at the State 
Fair may explain most of this jump in ridership.  
Compared to last September, the stations 
with the largest increase in average Saturday  
boardings are Old Town Station followed by  
Highland Village/Lewisville Lake then MedPark.   
 
 

49



Station by Station

       

665 

723 

400

450

500

550

600

650

700

750

800

850

900

Average Weekday Boardings: DDTC 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Boardings: DDTC 
In September, average daily boardings  
at the DDTC increased by 8% (or 58 
boardings per weekday) when compared  
to the previous year. Continued increases 
in UNT Fall enrollment may contribute to 
this rise in boardings at the DDTC. 

215 
232 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Average Weekday Boardings: MedPark 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Boardings: MedPark 
In September, average daily boardings  
at the MedPark Station increased by 8%  
(or 17 boardings per day) when 
compared to the previous year. This may 
be explained by the expansion of the  
Colorado Express Shuttle from the Golden 
Triangle Mall to the MedPark Station. 

176 
188 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Average Weekday Boardings: Highland Village/ 
Lewisville Lake 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Boardings: Highland  
Village/ Lewisville Lake 
In September, average daily boardings 
at the Highland Village/Lewisville  
Lake Station increased by 7% 
(or 12 boardings per day) when  
compared to last year.  This may be  
explained by people avoiding I-35  
construction by riding the A-train. 

50



Station by Station

177 

206 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Average Weekday Boardings: Old Town 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Boardings: Old Town 
In September, average daily boardings at 
the Old Town Station increased by  
16% (or 29 boardings per weekday)  
compared to the previous year. Increased 
development around the Old Town Station 
and greater ridership on Lewisville Route 
23 may have contributed to this increase. 

191 

217 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Average Weekday Boardings: Hebron 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Boardings: Hebron 
In September, the average daily  
boardings at the Hebron Station  
increased by 13% (or 26 boardings  
per weekday) relative to last year. 

904 
971 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

Average Weekday Boardings: Trinity Mills 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Average Weekday Boardings: Trinity Mills 
In September, average daily boardings  
at the Trinity Mills Station increased  
by 7% (or 67 boardings per weekday) 
compared to last year. In the past few  
months, growth in A-train ridership is  
occurring more evenly over DCTA stations 
instead of mostly at Trinity Mills. 

51



Total Bus

Total Bus: Boardings per Revenue Mile 
Overall in September, boardings per revenue 
mile increased slightly compared to the previous 
year. That is, buses carried about the same 
amount of passengers per mile relative to last 
year. 

2.37 2.43 

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

All Bus

Boardings per Revenue Mile 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Total Bus: Boardings per Revenue Hour 
In September, boardings per revenue hour 
dropped by 54% compared to last year. 

28.66 

13.18 

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

All Bus

Boardings per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

317,455 

354,375 

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

All Bus

Total Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Total Bus: Total Boardings 
Total boardings for all bus service increased  
by 11% (or 36,920 boardings) when  
comparing September 2013 to 2014. Most of  
the increase can be explained by jumps 
in UNT ridership.  The UNT routes with the  
largest increases were Discovery Park, 
Centre Place (East & West), and Eagle Point. 
 

15,665 
16,708 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

All Bus

Avg Weekday Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Total Bus: Average Weekday Boardings 
Average weekday boardings increased by 6% 
(or 1,043 boardings) per day when comparing 
September 2014 to the same period in 2013. 

 

52



Denton Connect

1.58 
1.64 

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

1.80

2.00

Denton

Boardings per Revenue Mile 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Denton Connect: Boardings per Revenue 
Mile 
In September, boardings per revenue mile 
increased by 4%  from the previous year.  
This may indicate that service improvements 

implemented in January 2014  and August 

2014 are maturing.    
 

19.33 

16.31 

1.00

6.00

11.00

16.00

21.00

Denton

Boardings per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Denton Connect: Boardings per Revenue 
Hour 
In September 2014, boardings per revenue 
hour decreased by  15%  
from the previous year.   

46,444 46,938 

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Denton

Total Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Denton Connect: Total Boardings 
In September 2014,  Denton routes remained 
about the same compared to 2013.   

2,181 
2,131 

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2,000

2,200

2,400

Denton

Avg Wkd Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Denton Connect: Average Weekday 
Boardings 
In September 2014,  there was a slight 
decrease in average weekday boardings 
compared to 2013. 

53



Lewisville Connect

0.44 0.44 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

Lewisville

Boardings per Revenue Mile 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Lewisville Connect: Boardings per Revenue 
Mile 
In September, boardings per revenue mile 
remained about the same when compared to 
2013. 

6.09 5.85 

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

Lewisville

Boardings per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Lewisville Connect: Boardings per Revenue 
Hour 
In September, boardings per revenue hour 
dropped by 4%  from the previous year.  As 
part of the January 2014 service changes, 
service was added to routes 22 and 23. 
Because this is new service, ridership has not 
grown as fast as revenue hours. 
 

9,924 

11,629 

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Lewisville

Total Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Lewisville Connect: Total Boardings 
In September, boardings increased by 17%  
(or 1,705 boardings) when compared to the 
previous year.    

456 
496 

100

200

300

400

500

600

Lewisville

Avg Wkd Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Lewisville Connect: Average Weekday 
Boardings 
In September, average weekday boardings 
increased by 9%  (or 40 boardings per day) 
when compared to the previous year.    

54



UNT Shuttle

4.53 

4.87 

3.00

3.50

4.00

4.50

5.00

5.50

6.00

UNT Shuttle

Boardings per Revenue Mile 

Sep-13

Sep-14

UNT Shuttle: Boardings per Revenue Mile 
In September, boardings per revenue mile 
increased by 7%. 
 

48.62 
51.18 

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

55.00

60.00

UNT Shuttle

Boardings per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

UNT Shuttle: Boardings per Revenue Hour 
In September, boardings per revenue hour 
increased by 5%. 
 

252,663 

287,812 

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

UNT Shuttle

Total Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

UNT Shuttle: Total Boardings 
In September, UNT boardings increased by 
14% (or 35,149 boardings) relative to the 
previous year. Increases in ridership in 
September and August 2014 may represent 
a reversal of a 24 month period of declines. 
As part of service changes in August 2014, 
service was added to the Colorado Express, 
Campus Cruiser, and Centre Place (East & 
West). 

12,633 

13,705 

5,000

7,000

9,000

11,000

13,000

15,000

UNT Shuttle

Avg Wkd Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

UNT Shuttle: Average Weekday Boardings 
In September, UNT average weekday 
boardings increased by 8% (or 1,072 
boardings per day). 

55



NCTC Shuttle

0.49 

0.30 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

NCTC Shuttle

Boardings per Revenue Mile 

Sep-13

Sep-14

NCTC Shuttle: Boardings per Revenue Mile 
In September, boardings per revenue mile 
decreased by 40% from the previous year.   

10.91 

5.84 

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

NCTC Shuttle

Boardings per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

NCTC Shuttle: Boardings per Revenue Hour 
In September, boardings per revenue hour 
decreased by 46% from the previous year.  

2,276 

2,451 

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

NCTC Shuttle

Total Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

NCTC Shuttle: Total Boardings 
In September, NCTC boardings increased by 
7%  (or 175 boardings) when compared to 
2013. 

228 

272 

100

150

200

250

300

NCTC Shuttle

Avg Wkd Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

NCTC Shuttle: Average Weekday Boardings 
In September, NCTC average weekday 
boardings increased by 19% (or 45 boardings 
per day) when compared to 2013.      

56



Access

0.13 0.13 

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

0.20

Access

Boardings per Revenue Mile 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Access: Boardings per Revenue Mile 
In September, boardings per revenue mile 
remained about the same when compared 
to the previous year.  

1.89 
2.03 

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

Access

Boardings per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Access: Boardings per Revenue Hour 
In September 2014, boardings per revenue 
hour remained increased by 7%. 
 

2,396 

2,841 

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Access

Total Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Access: Total Boardings 
In September, boardings increased by 18% 
(or 445 boardings) relative to the previous 
year.  Average weekday boardings improved 
by 14% (or 16 boardings per day).  

57



Access (Cont.)

0.10 

0.08 

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

Access

No Shows per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Access: No-Shows per Revenue Hour 
In September, the rate of no-shows per 
revenue hour  decreased by 19% from the 
previous year.   

47 

57 

10

20

30

40

50

60

Access

Trip Denials  

Sep-13

Sep-14

Access: Trip Denials 
In September, non-ADA trip denials 
increased by  21% (or 10 denials) when 
compared to 2013.  

58



 Connect RSVP

Connect RSVP : Boardings per Revenue Mile 
Boardings per revenue miles dropped by 34% 
when comparing September 2014 to 2013.   
 0.19 

0.13 

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

0.20

0.25

RSVP

Boardings per Revenue Mile 

Sep-13

Sep-14

2.61 

1.51 

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

RSVP

Boardings per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Connect RSVP: Boardings per Revenue Hour 
In September, boardings per revenue hour 
dropped by 42% when compared to 2013. 

0.54 

0.29 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

RSVP

No Shows per Revenue Hour 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Connect RSVP: No-Shows per Revenue 
Hour 
In September, No-shows per revenue hour 
dropped  by 47% from previous year.   
No-shows dropped by 44% (or  
24 no-shows) while revenue hours  
increased by 5%. 

321 

195 

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

RSVP

Total Boardings 

Sep-13

Sep-14

Connect RSVP : Total Boardings 
In September, boardings dropped by 39%  
(or 126 boardings) when compared to 2013. 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



 

 
1955 Lakeway Dr., # 260 
Lewisville, Texas 75057 

   
Denton County Transportation Authority 

Board of Directors 
Work Session and Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Work Session Minutes 

 
The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened with Chairman 
Charles Emery presiding at 1:30 p.m. September 25, 2014 at 1955 Lakeway Dr., # 260 
Lewisville, Texas 75057 .  A quorum was present. 
 

Attendance 
 

Small Cities DCTA Staff 
Skip Kalb James C. Cline, Jr., P.E. 
 Anna Mosqueda, CFO / Sr. VP Finance 
Large Cities Kristina Brevard, VP Marketing and 
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman Communications 
Michael Leavitt, Highland Village, Alternate  
Dave Kovatch, Treasurer  (arrived 1:43 p.m.)  
Richard Huckaby, Denton, Secretary Jeff Bennett, Director of Transit Operations 
Carter Wilson, Frisco   Amanda Riddle, Budget Coordinator 
Doug Peach, Little Elm (arrived 2:05 p.m.) Shanna O’Gilvie, Program Manager HR / Grants 
Daniel Peugh, Corinth   Ann Boulden, Project Manager Capital Projects 
Jim Robertson, Flower Mound   Athena Forrester, Purchasing Manager 
 Chrissy Nguyen, Senior Accountant 
Denton County at Large  
  
Denton County Unincorporated  
George A. Campbell Legal Counsel 
Don Hartman   Pete Smith, General Counsel 
  
Board Members Absent  
Bill Walker  
Allen Harris, The Colony  
Paul Pomeroy, Highland Village, Vice-Chair  

 

Chairman Charles Emery called the meeting to order and announced the presence of a 
quorum. 
 

1. Routine Briefing Items 
a. Financial Reports - Anna Mosqueda presented financial information  

i. Financial Statements 
ii. Capital Projects Fund 
iii. Sales Tax Report 
iv. Procurement Report 

 
 

108



 
b. Communications and Marketing – Kristina Brevard reported on these 

items and presented City of Lewisville 2025 Video 
i. Marketing and Communications Initiatives 
ii. Media Coverage 
iii. Customer Service 

 
c. Capital Projects Update -  Jim Cline presented information on the following 

topics 
i. GTW Integration  
ii. Where’s My Ride  
iii. Bus Operations and Maintenance Facility (O&M) 
iv. Community Enhancements 
v. Lewisville Bike Trail 
vi. Positive Train Control (PTC) 
vii. Station Improvements 

 
d. Transit Operations – Kristina Brevard provided an update 

i. Rail Operations 
ii. Bus Operations 

 
e. Strategic Planning / Development – Kristina Brevard provided an update 

i. Comprehensive Service Analysis 
ii. Outreach Efforts 

 
2. Committee Reports 

a. Legislative Committee – Legislative Chair Charles Emery introduced Drew 
Campbell and Brandi Bird to present an update to the Board 

b. Program Services Committee – Committee Chair Paul Pomeroy reported 
on Program Services Committee meeting  
  

3. Discussion of Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items (September 25, 2014) – no 
discussion 
 

4. Executive Session  - none 
a. As Authorized by Section 551.071(2) of the Texas Government Code, the 

Work Session or the Regular Board Meeting may be Convened into 
Closed Executive Session for the Purpose of Seeking Confidential Legal 
Advice from the General Counsel on any Agenda Item Listed Herein. 

b. As authorized by Texas Government Code section 551.071 consultation 
with General Counsel regarding pending litigation Cause No 2011-30066-
211; URS Corporation v. Denton County Transportation Authority; 211th 
District Court, Denton County, Texas. 

c. Texas Government Code Section 551.072 Deliberation regarding Real 
Property: Lease of DCTA Property. 

d. As Authorized by Section 551.074 the Texas Government Code, the 
Meeting may be Convened into Closed Executive Session for the Purpose 
of Discussion regarding Annual President’s Performance Review. 
 

5. Reconvene Open Session   n/a 
a. Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during 

Executive Session.   
109



 
 

6. Discussion of Future Agenda Items 
a. Board Member Requests – none 

 
<Break> 2:52 p.m. 

 
1955 Lakeway Dr., # 260 
Lewisville, Texas 75057 

 
Denton County Transportation Authority 

Board of Directors 
Work Session and Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 
 

The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened with Chairman 
Charles Emery presiding at 3:04 p.m. September 25, 2014 at 1955 Lakeway Dr., # 260 
Lewisville, Texas 75057.  A quorum was present. 
 

Attendance 
Small Cities DCTA Staff 
Skip Kalb James C. Cline, Jr., P.E. 
 Anna Mosqueda, CFO / Sr. VP Finance 
Large Cities Kristina Brevard, VP Marketing and 
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman Communications 
Paul Pomeroy, Highland Village, Vice-Chair  
Dave Kovatch, Treasurer    
Richard Huckaby, Denton, Secretary Jeff Bennett, Director of Transit Operations 
Carter Wilson, Frisco   Amanda Riddle, Budget Coordinator 
Doug Peach, Little Elm  Shanna O’Gilvie, Program Manager HR / Grants 
Daniel Peugh, Corinth   Ann Boulden, Project Manager Capital Projects 
Jim Robertson, Flower Mound   Athena Forrester, Purchasing Manager 
 Chrissy Nguyen, Senior Accountant 
Denton County at Large  
  
Denton County Unincorporated  
George A. Campbell Legal Counsel 
Don Hartman   Pete Smith, General Counsel 
  
Board Members Absent  
Bill Walker  
Allen Harris, The Colony  
 
CALL TO ORDER – Chairman Charles Emery called the meeting to order and 
announced the presence of a quorum of the Board. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO US AND TEXAS FLAGS – Doug Peach 
 
INVOCATION – Skip Kalb 
 
 

110



 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF VISITORS - Presentation of Agency Awards 

 5 year Service Award 
o Shanna O’Gilvie, Program Manager HR & Grants 

 
 South West Transit Association Spotlight Awards – Presented to 

o Rusty Comer, Marketing and Creative Services Coordinator 
o Adrienne Hamilton, Marketing & Communications Specialist 
o Wendy Haun, Marketing Intern 

 1st place for “EnRoute News” in the Print Media category 
 1st place for “New Responsive Website Design” in the Social Media 

category 
 3rd place for “Heart of Dallas Bowl” in the Event Promotion category 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of Minutes August 28, 2014 
b. Acceptance of Financial Reports 
c. Authorize the President to execute Letter of Engagement with Weaver and 

Tidwell, LLP for annual audit services for Fiscal Year ended 9/30/2014 
d. Authorize the President to execute contract for purchase of utility tractor & 

implements 
e. Authorize President to execute contract for the purchase of handheld 

radios  
f. Approval of Amendment to President’s Employment Agreement 
-Motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 1a-f made by Richard Huckaby.  
2nd by Dave Kovatch.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. REGULAR AGENDA  
a. Discussion / Approval of Resolution 14-06 adopting: 

i. Fiscal Year 2015 Capital & Operating  Budget 
ii. Contingency Plan 
iii. Cash Flow Model 

- Motion to Approve Resolution 14-06 made by Daniel Peugh.  2nd by 
Doug Peach.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

b. Discussion / Approval of Huffines Temporary Access  Easement – 
Presentation by Huffines representative Elvio Bruni 
-Motion to Approve Huffines Temporary Access Easement made by Jim 
Robertson.  2nd by Skip Kalb.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

c. Discussion / Approval of 2015 Annual Program of Projects 
-Motion to Approve 2015 Annual Program of Projects made by Skip Kalb.  
2nd by Dave Kovatch.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

d. Discussion / Approval of Denton County Transportation Authority’s State 
and Federal Legislative Agenda 
-Motion to Approve Denton County Transportation Authority’s State 
Legislative Agenda made by Richard Huckaby.  2nd by Dave Kovatch.  
Motion carried.  Skip Kalb abstained from the vote citing the appearance 
of conflict of interest regarding Class 1 Railroad connection. 
 
 

111



 
e. Discussion / Approval Discussion / Approval  of Rail Drainage 

Improvements  
i. Approve FY15 Capital Project in the amount of $250,000 for 

Drainage Improvements    
ii. Authorize President to Negotiate and Execute  Agreement(s) 

necessary  for engineering, grading and related drainage site work  
in an amount not to exceed $250,000 

-Motion to Approve Rail Drainage Improvements as listed made by Dave 
Kovatch.  2nd by Daniel Peugh.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. CHAIR REPORT – Charles Emery gave an update Regional Transportation 
Issues 

a. Discussion of Regional Transportation Issues  
 

4. PRESIDENT’S REPORT – Jim Cline reported 
a. Regional Transportation Update 
b. Budget Transfers 

 
5. REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST –  

a. Pursuant to Texas Government Section 551.0415 the Board of Directors 
may report on following items:  (1) expression of thanks, congratulations, 
or condolences; (2) information about holiday schedules; (3) recognition of 
individuals; (4) reminders about upcoming DCTA and Member City events; 
(5) information about community events; and (6) announcements involving 
imminent threat to public health and safety. 

 
6. CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION –  none 

a. As Authorized by Section 551.071(2) of the Texas Government Code, the 
Board Meeting may be Convened into Closed Executive Session for the 
Purpose of Seeking Confidential Legal Advice from the General Counsel 
on any Agenda Item Listed Herein. 

 
7. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION – n/a 

a. Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during 
Executive Session.   
 

8. ADJOURN  4:13 p.m. 
 
 
The minutes of the September 25, 2014 meeting of the Board of Directors were passed, and 
approved by a vote on this 23rd day of October, 2014. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Charles Emery, Chairman 

 
ATTEST 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Richard Huckaby, Secretary 
 

112




